
           
The City of Muskogee encourages participation from all its citizens in public meetings. If participation is not possible due to a disability,
notify the City Clerk, in writing, at least forty-eight hours prior to the scheduled meeting and necessary accommodations will be made (ADA
28 CFR/36).

Council Rules of Decorum limit citizen comments on agenda items and public hearings to five (5) minutes and general comments for
non-agenda items to three (3) minutes.  Any person desiring to address the Council during such period is required to sign in with the City Clerk
prior to the Council meeting between 6:30 p.m. and 6:45 p.m. on the third floor of City Hall or anytime between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. in the
Office of the City Clerk. They shall provide their name, address and specify the agenda item they wish to address. Remarks shall be directed to
the matter being considered and the speaker is allowed to speak only one time. If written materials are to be submitted twelve (12) copies
should be made available, and may not be returned.

 

AGENDA
MUSKOGEE CITY COUNCIL

December 11, 2017
 
 

REGULAR SESSION -7:00 P.M., 3RD FLOOR, COUNCIL CHAMBERS MUNICIPAL BUILDING,
229 W. OKMULGEE, MUSKOGEE, OKLAHOMA

INVOCATION - COUNCILMEMBER WAYNE JOHNSON

FLAG SALUTE - MAYOR BOB COBURN

ROLL CALL - MAYOR BOB COBURN

           

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: CITY COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION NOVEMBER 27, 2017.
 

CONSENT AGENDA
 

The following items are considered to be routine by the City Council and will not be read
aloud. The Consent Agenda will be enacted with one motion and should discussion be desired
on an item, that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda prior to action and
considered separately prior to the Regular Agenda.
 
 

1. Approve claims for all City departments November 16, 2017 through November 29, 2017.
 

2. Approve to accept the Engineering Services Agreement from Holloway, Updike and Bellen,
Inc. (HUB), for professional services for the plans and specifications for construction of the
Civitan Drainage Basin Improvements in the amount of $112,900.00, or take other necessary
action. (Greg Riley)

 

3. Approve best bid from Rehrig Pacific in the amount of $53.51 per cart for the purchase of
1,916 residential refuse carts for fiscal year 2017-2018, or take other necessary action. (Greg
Riley)



 

4. Approve awarding a construction contract to the lowest and best bidder, Cook's Consulting,
for the construction of Wastewater System Improvements - Port Lift Station Replacement in
the amount of $2,280,000.00, or take other necessary action. (Greg Riley)

 

5. Approve receiving donated funds for the month of October 2017, in the amount of
$1,013.00 for the City's Animal Shelter Sponsorship Program as per the attached list, or take
other necessary action. (Rex Eskridge)

 

6. Approve the appointment of Dan Hall to the Airport Board, to serve a four (4) year term
beginning January 1, 2018, and ending December 30, 2022, succeeding Ben Robinson, or take
other necessary action. (Councilor Dan Hall)

 

7. Approve receiving report on findings and acceptance of recommendations from the Healthy
Food Retail Task Force, a subcommittee of the Muskogee Wellness Initiative, or take any
necessary action. (Roy D. Tucker)

 

REGULAR AGENDA
 

8. Hold a Public Hearing and take action on the approval of Ordinance No. 4035-A to close the
twenty (20) foot alley running north and south, located within Block 61, of the Muskogee
Original Townsite (MOT), more particularly described in the ordinance, or take other
necessary action. (Gary D. Garvin)

 

  THE ALLEY RUNNING NORTH AND SOUTH, 12' ON THE NORTH END,
EXTENDING TO 20' WIDE ON THE SOUTH END.  LOCATED BETWEEN LOTS 1-15,
LOT 61, of the Muskogee Original Townsite (MOT), LOCATED IN THE SOUTHWEST
QUARTER (SW1/4) OF SECTION 26, TOWNSHIP 15 NORTH, RANGE 18 EAST,
MUSKOGEE COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA.

 

9. Consider approval authorizing the transfer of funds in the amount of $834,130 to the
Muskogee Redevelopment Authority, directing said funds be utilized for the purpose of
retiring outstanding debt in favor of the Muskogee Medical Center Authority, as evidenced
by the note and loan agreement of May 6, 2015, or take other necessary action. (Mike Miller)

 

10. Consider approval of the appointment of Dr. Michael Lynn Soper to the Airport Board, to
serve a four (4) year term beginning January 1, 2018, and ending December 30, 2022,
succeeding Gary Hall, or take other necessary action. (Councilor Wayne Johnson)
 

 

RECOGNIZE CITIZENS WISHING TO SPEAK TO THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL.



RECOGNIZE CITIZENS WISHING TO SPEAK TO THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL.

Council Rules of Decorum limit citizen comments to three (3) minutes. Any person desiring to
speak is required to sign-in with the City Clerk, provide their name, address, and the
particular issue they wish to address. Under Oklahoma law, the Council Members are
prohibited from discussing or taking any action on items not on today’s agenda. If written
materials are to be submitted to the Council twelve (12) copies should be made available, and
may not be returned.
 

11. Consider an Executive Session to discuss and take possible action on the following:
 

A. Pursuant to Section 307B.2, Title 25, Oklahoma Statutes, consider convening in Executive
Session to discuss negotiations with the American Federation of State, County and Municipal
Employees, Local #2465, and if necessary, take appropriate action in open session. (Kelly
Plunkett)

 

B. Pursuant to Section 307B.2, Title 25, Oklahoma Statutes, consider convening in Executive
Session to discuss negotiations with the International Association of Fire Fighters, Local # 57,
and if necessary, take appropriate action in open session. (Kelly Plunkett)

 

C. Pursuant to Section 307 C.10, Title 25, Oklahoma Statutes, consider convening in Executive
Session for the purpose of conferring on matters pertaining to economic development projects
within the downtown corridor, and if necessary, take appropriate action in open session. 
(Mike Miller)

 

D. Pursuant to Section 307 C.10, Title 25, Oklahoma Statues, consider convening in Executive
Session for the purpose of conferring on matters pertaining to economic development within
the Urban Renewal Area, and if necessary, take appropriate action in open session. (Mike
Miller)
 

 

ADJOURN
 



   
Regular City Council           
Meeting Date: 12/11/2017  
Initiator: Ashley Wallace, Office Adm 1
Department: City Clerk
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: CITY COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION NOVEMBER 27, 2017.

BACKGROUND:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
11-27-2017 ccmin 



MINUTES
 

 
OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MUSKOGEE,

OKLAHOMA, MET IN REGULAR SESSION, IN
THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS OF CITY HALL

MONDAY, NOVEMBER 27, 2017
 

The Council of the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma, met in Regular Session in Council Chambers of City
Hall, Monday, November 27, 2017, at 7:00 p.m., with Mayor Coburn presiding.
Invocation was given by Deputy Mayor James Gulley
 
Flag Salute was led by Mayor Bob Coburn
 
Meeting was called to order by Mayor John R. Coburn and the City Clerk called the roll as follows:
 

Present: Mayor John R. Coburn; Deputy Mayor James Gulley; Councilmember Janey Boydston;
Councilmember Patrick Cale; Councilmember Marlon Coleman; Councilmember Dan Hall;
Councilmember Wayne Johnson; Councilmember Derrick Reed; Councilmember Ivory Vann

Staff
Present:

Mike Miller, City Manager; Mike Stewart, Asst City Manager; Roy Tucker, City Attorney;
Tammy L. Tracy, City Clerk; Gary Garvin, City Planner; Greg Riley, Public Works Director;
Matthew Beese, Assistant City Attorney; Rex Eskridge, Police Chief 

               

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: SPECIAL CALL CITY COUNCIL MINUTES NOVEMBER 7,
2017, and CITY COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION NOVEMBER 13, 2017.

  

 
  Motion was made by Councilmember Wayne Johnson, seconded by Councilmember

Janey Boydston to approve SPECIAL CALL CITY COUNCIL MINUTES NOVEMBER
7, 2017, and CITY COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION NOVEMBER 13, 2017. 

  AYE:  Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor James Gulley, Councilmember Janey
Boydston, Councilmember Patrick Cale, Councilmember Marlon Coleman,
Councilmember Dan Hall, Councilmember Wayne Johnson, Councilmember
Derrick Reed, Councilmember Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
CONSENT AGENDA

 
  Motion was made by Deputy Mayor James Gulley, seconded by Councilmember Marlon

Coleman to approve Consent Agenda. 

  AYE:  Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor James Gulley, Councilmember Janey



  AYE:  Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor James Gulley, Councilmember Janey
Boydston, Councilmember Patrick Cale, Councilmember Marlon Coleman,
Councilmember Dan Hall, Councilmember Wayne Johnson, Councilmember
Derrick Reed, Councilmember Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
The following items are considered to be routine by the City Council and will not be read
aloud. The Consent Agenda will be enacted with one motion and should discussion be desired
on an item, that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda prior to action and
considered separately prior to the Regular Agenda.
 

 
1 Approval of claims for all city departments for November 1, 2017 through November 15,

2017.
  

 
2 Approval to accept the lowest and best bids from Simpson Carpentry in the amount of

$7,700.00 to repair the dwelling located at 1414 Tamaroa Street, and Tom Crabtree in the
amount of $10,475.00 to repair the dwelling located at 1506 N. 16th Street, for a total of
$18,175.00 to repair two (2) dwellings through the Muskogee Rehabilitation and
Revitalization Program, or take other necessary action. (Gary D. Garvin)

  

 
3 Approval of Resolution No. 2709 to participate in a project with the Oklahoma Department

of Transportation (ODOT) to replace the traffic signal at US-62 (Shawnee Bypass) and
Country Club Road, or take other necessary action.  (Greg Riley)

  

 
4 Approval of an agreement with Garver, LLC., for professional services for the Terminal

Apron Handstand Construction Project #17031561 at Muskogee-Davis Regional Airport, or
take other necessary action. (Drew Saffell)

  

 
5 Approval to direct Staff to prepare a plan to solicit a state fair or similar type of event to bring

to the City. (Councilor Marlon Coleman)
  

 
REGULAR AGENDA

 
6 Hold a Public Hearing and take action on the approval of Ordinance 4033-A  rezoning the

property located at 3123 Gibson Street, more particularly described in the Ordinance, from
"C-2" General Commercial District to "R-1" Single-Family Residential, and if approved
authorize Staff to revise the Official Zoning Map of the City to reflect said change, or take
other necessary action. (Gary D. Garvin)

Mayor Bob Coburn opened the Public Hearing.

Planning Director Gary Garvin stated the applicant, Anthony Cox, is requesting the property
located at 3123 Gibson Street, to be rezoned from "C-2" General Commercial District to
"R-1" Single-Family Residential District to allow a new single-family dwelling to be located
on the property.

The Comprehensive Plan/Land Use Map, adopted by the City of Muskogee, indicates

  



The Comprehensive Plan/Land Use Map, adopted by the City of Muskogee, indicates
single-family residential within this area.  Therefore, the request to rezone to "R-1"
Single-Family complies with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Use Map.

Notices have been sent to the property owners within 300 foot radius, as required, and
published in the paper twenty (20) days prior to the Public Hearing. A Public Hearing will
be held on the following days:

November 20, 2017 at 9:00 a.m.: City of Muskogee Planning & Zoning Commission
November 21, 2017 at 4:00 p.m.: Public Works Committee
November 27, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. Muskogee City Council Meeting

Mayor Bob Coburn closed the Public Hearing.
 
  Motion was made by Councilmember Patrick Cale, seconded by Councilmember Janey

Boydston  to approve Ordinance 4033-A  rezoning the property located at 3123 Gibson
Street, more particularly described in the Ordinance, from "C-2" General Commercial
District to "R-1" Single-Family Residential, and if approved authorize Staff to revise the
Official Zoning Map of the City to reflect said change. 

  AYE:  Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor James Gulley, Councilmember Janey
Boydston, Councilmember Patrick Cale, Councilmember Marlon Coleman,
Councilmember Dan Hall, Councilmember Wayne Johnson, Councilmember
Derrick Reed, Councilmember Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
7 Consider approval of Ordinance No. 4034-A repealing Article 16, Hospitals and Ambulatory

Surgical Care Facilities, including Sections 22-674 through 22-675, all contained within
Chapter 22, Business Regulations, of the City of Muskogee Code of Ordinances, and
reserving said section and article numbers for future use, or take other necessary action. (Roy
D. Tucker) 

City Attorney Roy D. Tucker stated pursuant to direction given to Staff, a proposed
ordinance repealing the regulations for hospital and ambulatory surgical care facilities is
proposed. This existing ordinance would require any newly created or expanded hospital or
surgical care facility to obtain a permit requiring a deposit of $10,000.00, as well as, a
possible feasibility/impact study.

  

 
  Motion was made by Councilmember Janey Boydston, seconded by Councilmember

Marlon Coleman to approve Ordinance No. 4034-A repealing Article 16, Hospitals and
Ambulatory Surgical Care Facilities, including Sections 22-674 through 22-675, all
contained within Chapter 22, Business Regulations, of the City of Muskogee Code of
Ordinances, and reserving said section and article numbers for future use. 

  AYE:  Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor James Gulley, Councilmember Janey
Boydston, Councilmember Patrick Cale, Councilmember Marlon Coleman,
Councilmember Dan Hall, Councilmember Wayne Johnson, Councilmember
Derrick Reed, Councilmember Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 



 
8 Consider approval to accept the 2018 State of Oklahoma Emergency Management

Performance Grant (EMPG) in the amount of $25,000.00 to be used to fund Emergency
Management operations, or take other necessary action. (Rex Eskridge)

Police Chief Rex Eskridge stated this is a reoccurring annual grant that the City receives.
The EMPG grant is a 50% local 50% state performance based grant. Based on the City's
budget allocation to the Emergency Management Department, the grant will be
for $25,000.00. The monies from this grant will be used in furtherance of the Emergency
Management operations for the City. This includes All Hazard, Whole Community Planning,
current Emergency Operations Plan, Hazard Mitigation Plan, and NIMS compliance. The
EMPG program encourages the development of a comprehensive emergency preparedness
system for all hazards by the State and local governments. See attached FY 2018 Emergency
Management Program Grant Application.
The application for this grant was approved at the 11/13/2017 Council Meeting.

  

 
  Motion was made by Councilmember Dan Hall, seconded by Councilmember Marlon

Coleman to approve the 2018 State of Oklahoma Emergency Management Performance
Grant (EMPG) in the amount of $25,000.00 to be used to fund Emergency Management
operations. 

  AYE:  Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor James Gulley, Councilmember Janey
Boydston, Councilmember Patrick Cale, Councilmember Marlon Coleman,
Councilmember Dan Hall, Councilmember Wayne Johnson, Councilmember
Derrick Reed, Councilmember Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
9 Consider approval of the appointment of Bob Coburn to the Airport Board, to serve a two (2)

year term beginning December 1, 2017 and ending November 30, 2019, succeeding
Councilor Janey Boydston, or take other necessary action. (Mayor Bob Coburn)

Mayor Bob Coburn stated this appointment is to replace the expired term of Councilor Janey
Boydston on the Airport Board.

  

 
  Motion was made by Deputy Mayor James Gulley, seconded by Councilmember Janey

Boydston to approve appointment of Bob Coburn to the Airport Board, to serve a two (2)
year term beginning December 1, 2017 and ending November 30, 2019, succeeding
Councilor Janey Boydston. 

  AYE:  Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor James Gulley, Councilmember Janey
Boydston, Councilmember Patrick Cale, Councilmember Marlon Coleman,
Councilmember Dan Hall, Councilmember Wayne Johnson, Councilmember
Derrick Reed, Councilmember Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
RECOGNIZE CITIZENS WISHING TO SPEAK TO THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL.



RECOGNIZE CITIZENS WISHING TO SPEAK TO THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL.

Council Rules of Decorum limit citizen comments to three (3) minutes. Any person desiring to
speak is required to sign-in with the City Clerk, provide their name, address, and the
particular issue they wish to address. Under Oklahoma law, the Council Members are
prohibited from discussing or taking any action on items not on today’s agenda. If written
materials are to be submitted to the Council twelve (12) copies should be made available, and
may not be returned.

Stephen Ezell, 6121 S. 6th Street E., Muskogee, Oklahoma, stated he would like for everyone to
recognize the people in our community that are in need of basic necessities such as food and
clothing.  This holiday season he would like to encourage the citizens of Muskogee to show
compassion, by donating to the Salvation Army, putting together baskets of food, donating to
homeless shelters, or adopting pets in need of a home.  God Bless Muskogee, Oklahoma.

Marcela Ellison, 4113 Stone Creek Drive, Muskogee, Oklahoma, expressed her desire for Council
to help her find the location of her "stolen Jewish children." 

 
ADJOURN

 

__________________________________
JOHN R. COBURN, MAYOR

 
 
 
 

_______________________________
TAMMY L. TRACY, CITY CLERK

 
 



   
Regular City Council 1.           
Meeting Date: 12/11/2017  
Initiator: Karen Felts, Office Administrator
Department: Purchasing
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Approve claims for all City departments November 16, 2017 through November 29, 2017.

BACKGROUND:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Claims 11/16/2017 to 11/29/2017 

















   
Regular City Council 2.           
Meeting Date: 12/11/2017  
Submitted For:  Greg Riley, Public Works  Initiator: Christy Byrd, Office

Administrator I
Department: Public Works
Staff Information Source: Greg Riley, Director of Public Works; HUB 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Approve to accept the Engineering Services Agreement from Holloway, Updike and Bellen, Inc. (HUB),
for professional services for the plans and specifications for construction of the Civitan Drainage Basin
Improvements in the amount of $112,900.00, or take other necessary action. (Greg Riley)

BACKGROUND:
This project was included as part of the projects to be completed using the Oklahoma Water Resources
Board (OWRB) loan that was secured in April of this year.  A study of the Civitan Drainage Basin was
included as part of the original contract for the OWRB projects.  This contract will complete the design
of the projects that were found necessary within the study.   The project completes the drainage from
Bonnie Lane to Country Club Avenue within the Civitan Basin.  This is an area that experiences
significant flooding and has some major maintenance problems.  The project will reduce the flooding
frequency and help minimize the needed maintenance through the basin.

The specific areas are described below.

1. Storm Sewer Improvements at Bonnie Jay Lane
2. Joint Rehabilitation east of Horn Street
3. Haskell Ditch Improvements
4. Stream Embankment Stabilization between Haskell Blvd. and North Country Club Road
5. Country Club Road Culvert Replacement and Associated Road Improvements

The City of Muskogee (Owner) requires certain engineering services (the Services) in connection with
the Project, and whereas the engineer, Holloway, Updike and Bellen, Inc. (Engineer) is prepared to
provide the Services.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve to accept the proposed Engineering Services Agreement with Holloway, Updike, and Bellen,
Inc.(HUB) for professional services for the plans and specifications of the Civitan Drainage Basin
Improvements.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Civitan Engineering Agreement 
Civitan Scope of Services 
Civitan Study 



Civitan Study 













































CIVITAN DRAINAGE
BASIN STUDY
City of Muskogee

October 2017



818 EAST SIDE BOULEVARD, MUSKOGEE, OK 74403
918-682-7811    WWW.HUBENGRS.COM

Civitan Drainage Basin Study
For the City of Muskogee
August 2017



Location Map



Upper End of Civitan Drainage at
Debby Lane/Bonnie Lane



25-yr Proposed Storm Sewer



Circle Acres Storm Sewer Sink Holes
Site Plan



3+06
Note: Lining Feature Pinholes 
Closed, Lining Feature Detached 
9 – 3 o’clock continuous Defect 
Picture 1



0+13
Note Hole Void Visible



Civitan Drainage Looking
North from Irving Street



Irving/Belmont
Channel Improvements



Drainage Channel with Articulating Block







Civitan Drainage Country 
Club Road Looking North



Country Club Road Looking
North from Chandler



Country Club Road Plan



Country Club Road Profile





Project Cost Summary
Civitan Drainage Basin Improvements Cost

Area 1- Debbie Jane Lane/Bonnie Ave. Flooding $80,000.00

Area 2- Circle Acres Storm Sewer Sink Holes $50,000.00

Area 3- Stormwater Channel Maintenance $370,000.00

Area 4- Country Club Road Structure and Roadway $680,000.00

Miscellaneous Improvements and Channel Stabilization $150,000.00

Total Estimated Construction Cost $1,330,000.00

Engineering $112,900.00

Inspection $57,100.00

Total Estimated Project Cost $1,500,000.00



   
Regular City Council 3.           
Meeting Date: 12/11/2017  
Submitted For:  Greg Riley, Public Works  Initiator: Christy Byrd, Office

Administrator I
Department: Public Works
Staff Information Source: Greg Riley, Director of Public Works; Jim Wixom, Assistant Director of

Public Works-Operations 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Approve best bid from Rehrig Pacific in the amount of $53.51 per cart for the purchase of 1,916
residential refuse carts for fiscal year 2017-2018, or take other necessary action. (Greg Riley)

BACKGROUND:
Bids were invited and 6 responses were received.  Tabulation sheet is attached.
     *Cascade Engineering Inc.does not meet specifications.
     *Otto Environmental Systems does not meet specifications.
     *Toter Inc. Submitted a no bid letter.
     *IPL Inc. does not meet specifications.
     *Schaefer Systems Intl Inc. bid $48.63 and meets specifications.
     *Rehrig Pacific bid was most complete and their product meets city specifications.

The City of Muskogee currently has approximately 13,000 Rehrig carts.  The purchasing committee
chose this cart after review of several different carts  in 2004.  Rehrig Pacific, Company has represented
their cart as stated and honored  their warranty when needed.  We believe it is in the City's best interest
to stay consistent in the type of container used as our supervisors carry spare parts in their trucks for
minor repair of carts.  Having two types of carts in service would require carrying multiple types of parts
to make quick repairs.  The size, shape and color of the carts will remain consistent throughout the City
to avoid any confusion with private carriers.  We have been pleased with the service of Rehrig and have
developed a comfort level with the carts and the company.  We know what to expect in performance and
service.   

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approval of best bid from Rehrig Pacific in the amount of $53.51 per cart for the purchase of 1,916
Residential Refuse Carts for fiscal year 2017-2018.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Bid Rehrig 





   
Regular City Council 4.           
Meeting Date: 12/11/2017  
Submitted For: Greg Riley, Public Works  Initiator: Greg Riley, Public

Works Director
Department: Public Works
Staff Information Source: Greg Riley (Public Works Director); George Kingston (Assistant Public

Works Director) 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Approve awarding a construction contract to the lowest and best bidder, Cook's Consulting, for the
construction of Wastewater System Improvements - Port Lift Station Replacement in the amount
of $2,280,000.00, or take other necessary action. (Greg Riley)

BACKGROUND:
The Wastewater Improvements, Port Lift Station Replacement Project includes the complete
replacement of three (3) aging lift stations along the river.  This project includes station numbers 2, 3
and 4.  The recently installed control panels will be reused within this project which resulted in
significant savings on the overall project.   The time allowed for completion of the project is 400 Days.

Plans were completed and five (5) bids were received for the construction of the project on November
21, 2017.  The bids are shown below and the tabulation is attached.
     Cook's Consulting                         $2,280,000.00
     BRB Contractors, Inc.                   $2,890,000.00
     Crossland Heavy Contractors       $3,345,000.00
     McGuire Brothers Construction     $3,459,600.00
     Wynn Construction                        $3,530,000.00
     Engineer's Estimate                      $3,000,000.00

We have discussed the lowest bid with the contractor and he is confident that he can complete the work
as bid and within the time allowed.  Cook Consulting recently completed an identical lift station in
Ft Gibson giving him confidence in this bid.  We believe that Cook's Consulting is capable of
performing the work and should be awarded the contract.

This project is part of the Oklahoma Water Resources Board (OWRB) loan and is budgeted as part of
the loan.  The bid price is lower than budgeted.  

    

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Accept the bids for the Port Lift Station project and award project to Cook's Consulting. 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments



Bid Tabs 
HUB Recommendation 









   
Regular City Council 5.           
Meeting Date: 12/11/2017  
Submitted For:  Rex Eskridge, Police  Initiator: Gayle Johnson, Chief

Secretary
Department: Police
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Approve receiving donated funds for the month of October 2017, in the amount of $1,013.00 for the
City's Animal Shelter Sponsorship Program as per the attached list, or take other necessary action. (Rex
Eskridge)

BACKGROUND:
City Council approved a Resolution authorizing a Sponsorship Program for the City's Animal Shelter
with said funds to be used for the purpose of neutering and spaying shelter animals.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve receiving donated funds for the month of November, 2017 in the amount of $1,013.00 for the
City's Animal Shelter Sponsorship Agenda Item Title.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Oct Donations 



pg. 1

Animal Shelter Donations for 2017

October

Kay Nabors $ 10.00

Dianna Lane 10.00

Michelle Parrott 8.00

Anonymous 65.00

Amanda Adams 10.00

Brenda Mark 10.00

Margaret Meyer 50.00

Brittany Johnson 8.00

Catherine Ramirez 5.00

Lacy Guinn 10.00

Declain Beattie 10.00

Edith Lubin 10.00

Patricia Evans 40.00

Marlene Garde 20.00

Madison Chambers 8.00

Jay Til lman 8.00

Mickie Atkins 10.00

Joyce Goodson 5.00

Mallory Testa 65.00

Jennifer Shambl in 10.00

Patty Fairchild 100.00

Melody Mitchell 150.00

Mathew Trammel 5.00

Gail Hopkins 65.00

Angela McGee 40.00

Shannon Goad-Coreno 11.00

Betsy Warren 30.00

Cheryl  Hiner 65.00

Michael Weidel 25.00



pg. 2

Herman Pierce 10.00

David Sturtz 20.00

Rachel George 20.00

Mike Coleman 100.00

Total: $ 1,013.00



   
Regular City Council 6.           
Meeting Date: 12/11/2017  
Initiator: Tammy Tracy, City Clerk
Department: City Clerk
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Approve the appointment of Dan Hall to the Airport Board, to serve a four (4) year term
beginning January 1, 2018, and ending December 30, 2022, succeeding Ben Robinson, or take other
necessary action. (Councilor Dan Hall)

BACKGROUND:
The is appointment is to replace the expired term of Ben Robinson on the Airport Board.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve appointment.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
Regular City Council 7.           
Meeting Date: 12/11/2017  
Submitted For:  Roy Tucker, City Attorney  Initiator: Roy Tucker, City

Attorney
Department: City Attorney
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Approve receiving report on findings and acceptance of recommendations from the Healthy Food Retail
Task Force, a subcommittee of the Muskogee Wellness Initiative, or take any necessary action. (Roy D.
Tucker)

BACKGROUND:
In 2016, the City Council passed a resolution that created the Healthy Food Retail Task Force to study
and make recommendations on how to improve availability of healthy food choices in the local diet of
our citizens.  The task force has now completed its work. Doug Walton will present the findings and
recommendations of the task force. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Receive report and take any necessary action.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Muskogee HFRTF Report 



1 
 

Muskogee Healthy Food Retail Taskforce  
2017 Report  

Executive Summary 

Background 

The Healthy Food Retail Taskforce was formed by 
the City of Muskogee Wellness Initiative in January 
2017, upon passage of Resolution # 2667 by the 
Muskogee City Council in November 2016. The 
Resolution recognized “the substantial impact of 
the retail food environment on the economy and 
the health and wellbeing of the citizens of 
Muskogee.” The Resolution also called for the 
formation of the taskforce “to study and make 
recommendations regarding the retail food 
environment, …to effect positive change related to 
both the availability and quality of food to the 
citizens of Muskogee.”1 

The taskforce met monthly throughout 2017 to 
review and discuss topics including: data about 
healthy food access and consumption; nutrition-
related health outcomes in the county; and 
programs addressing food insecurity, availability of 
culturally appropriate foods, transportation, and 
the marketing of healthy foods.  

The Healthy Food Retail Taskforce created and 
conducted a survey of Muskogee area residents to 
learn more about possible barriers to purchasing 
and eating healthy foods. Nearly 700 people 
responded to the survey, both online and by hand.  

The taskforce also inventoried and documented 
current food assistance resources and 
transportation services within the City.  

Lastly, the taskforce created and has begun 
conducting a survey of food retailers to learn more 
about possible barriers and opportunities for 
marketing healthy foods in Muskogee. 

Findings 

The proximity of a person’s residence to retailers 
offering healthy foods such as fruits and vegetables 
is one of several factors affecting their ability to 
make healthy choices.2  The City of Muskogee 
contains several census tracts with a significant 
number of people living more than 1 mile from a 
large grocery store, areas frequently referred to as 
food deserts.3  

One question on the survey conducted in the fall of 
2017 asked residents if household members have 
trouble getting and eating enough healthy food. 
Thirty-five percent of respondents living in the city 
selected a 5 or higher on a scale from 0 (never) to 
10 (always). This key finding seems to resonate 
throughout the survey results. 

In terms of household food security and the ability 
of families to have enough food for an active 
healthy life, survey participants were asked if 
members of their household had cut meal size or 
skipped meals because there wasn’t enough 
money.  On a scale from 0 (never) to 10 (always), 
29 % of city residents selected a 5 or higher, 
suggesting some degree of food insecurity. 

Survey results showed transportation is not a 
barrier to grocery store access for many people in 
Muskogee. However, over half of those using 
Muskogee County Transit to get groceries in the 
past year indicated that household members 
sometimes or always have trouble getting and 
eating enough healthy food. This association 
between public transit use and struggles with 
eating healthy, suggests possible benefits from 
improving transportation services for this 
vulnerable population.   



2 
 

The survey also found that 20% of Muskogee 
residents completing the survey have walked to get 
groceries within the past year, and that 5% had 
bicycled. Meanwhile, over 50% of residents 
surveyed indicated they could not safely or 
conveniently walk to a store in their neighborhood 
where they could purchase healthy foods. 

Even if distance to a grocery store isn’t a barrier to 
purchasing healthy foods for some people, the 
pricing of healthy foods was identified as a concern 
by most Muskogee area residents who completed a 
survey. When asked what would help them eat 
more healthy foods, 60% of all those surveyed 
chose “if they were more affordable.” 

Regarding efforts to address affordability, well over 
half the survey respondents living in the city 
indicated they had participated in one or more of 
the following food assistance programs during the 
past year: SNAP (39% of respondents), WIC (13%), 
food pantries (22%), community meals (16%) or 
veggie bucks (10%).  Over sixty percent of those 
who had utilized any of these resources indicated 
those programs were important for helping them 
have enough healthy foods to eat. 

Of those surveyed who had not received any food 
assistance during the past year, 23% said that 
“more time for shopping or fixing” would help 
them eat more healthy foods. While time isn’t a 
resource suited for easy distribution, perhaps time-
saving tips for selecting and preparing healthy 
foods could be shared within the community. 

Another measure of how well we’re eating is our 
volume of vegetable consumption. According to 
data collected by the CDC and the Oklahoma State 
Department of Health, one out of four adults in 
Muskogee County eats less than one vegetable per 
day.4 

 

At the same time, heart disease, diabetes and 
obesity all occur at higher rates in Muskogee 
County than in the state of Oklahoma or the U.S.5,6 

The link between these preventable health 
outcomes and factors such as low intake of healthy 
foods is well documented.7  

As declared in the Resolution which formed the 
taskforce, “the health and well-being of the 
residents of Muskogee are critical for a prosperous 
and sustainable City,…and employers are 
increasingly including workforce health in decisions 
about where to locate…” 

When asked if there were healthy food items they 
are looking for, 26% of respondents indicated they 
couldn’t find those foods at the places they shop in 
Muskogee. Likewise, 35% of all those surveyed said 
that better variety or quality where they shop 
would help them eat more healthy foods. 

Growing one’s own food can also help improve 
access, and the City of Muskogee is recognized 
across the state for our successful community 
gardens.8 However, with nearly 55 city residents 
selecting “somewhere to have a garden,” as one 
way to help them eat more healthy foods, it may 
be worthwhile to consider creation of additional 
space for residents to grow food. 

Returning to the issue of food deserts and low 
access to healthy options, it is worth 
acknowledging the number of vacant convenient 
stores or markets in Muskogee.  There are 
currently at least three empty food stores within 
the original town site, and three more outside that 
area.  Given that 13% of residents said a new or 
improved store near where they live would help 
them eat more healthy foods, these vacant venues 
could possibly serve as future sites for healthy 
neighborhood stores. 

 



3 
 

Recommendations 

Based on these findings and other supporting 
information, the Healthy Food Retail Taskforce and 
the Muskogee Wellness Initiative are making the 
following recommendations: 

1. Adjust fixed-transit routes to better meet 
residents’ needs for convenient grocery 
access; Ensure user-friendly route maps and 
schedules for Muskogee Transit are easily 
accessible throughout the community and 
online 
 

2. Strengthen community gardening, by 
assessing usage of existing gardens and 
demand for additional plots; possibly utilize 
vacant city lots for new garden areas; Identify 
existing fruit trees available for harvest, and 
plant others at parks, schools and public 
housing sites  

 
3. Expand the availability of Veggie Bucks or 

other similar “coupons”, good towards the 
purchase of fresh produce from the farmers 
market and/or area grocers 

 
4. Utilize Channel 14 for providing information 

addressing findings such as: time-saving 
cooking tips, brief instructional videos, 
testimonials and other resources to support 
healthy eating; food assistance resources and 
transportation services; info from this report; 
Okie 411 app availability 

 
 

 
 
5. Promote and support the efforts of food 

pantries in providing healthy foods to their 
clients, such as through the Salvation Army’s 
fresh produce program 

 
6. Ensure that zoning ordinances or other 

permitting requirements don’t create barriers 
to the development of healthy corner stores in 
or near residential areas.  Also consider 
possible incentive programs to attract or grow 
healthy food retailers 

 
7. Update, maintain and promote Okie 411 as 

the clearinghouse for information about 
transportation and food assistance resources 
available in Muskogee 

 
8. Review pedestrian and bicycle 

accommodations in public right of ways near 
grocery stores, to identify opportunities for 
improving safety and convenience 
 

9. Continue the Healthy Food Retail Taskforce to: 
coordinate the implementation of these 
recommendations; convene and engage 
partners and programs necessary to improve 
healthy food access and consumption; 
determine other barriers to healthy food 
access and consumption; identify and 
recommend programs, policies or actions for 
addressing barriers; and create a plan for 
systematically implementing and evaluating 
healthy food initiatives in Muskogee 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                           
1 City of Muskogee, City Council Resolution #2667, 2016.  
2 Access to Healthy Food and Why it Matters: A Review of the Research. PolicyLink. 2013. 
3 Food Access Research Atlas, USDA Economic Research Service, ESRI. 2017 
4 Oklahoma State Department of Health, Center for Health Statistics, Health Care Information, Behavioral Risk 
Factor Surveillance System, 2015. 
5 Ibid. 
6 Behavioral Risk Factor Surveillance System, Prevalence and Trends Data, accessed Nov 2017 
7 Health Benefits of Fruits and Vegetables, Joanne L. Slavin, Beate Lloyd, Advances in Nutrition, 2012 Jul; 3(4). 
8 Grow Healthy Oklahoma: A Guide to Community Gardening in the Sooner State, OK Public Health Leadership 
Institute, 2013. 



   
Regular City Council 8.           
Meeting Date: 12/11/2017  
Initiator: Susan Ross, Office Adm 1

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Hold a Public Hearing and take action on the approval of Ordinance No. 4035-A to close the twenty
(20) foot alley running north and south, located within Block 61, of the Muskogee Original Townsite
(MOT), more particularly described in the ordinance, or take other necessary action. (Gary D. Garvin)

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
THE ALLEY RUNNING NORTH AND SOUTH, 12' ON THE NORTH END, EXTENDING TO 20'
WIDE ON THE SOUTH END.  LOCATED BETWEEN LOTS 1-15, LOT 61, of the Muskogee
Original Townsite (MOT), LOCATED IN THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW1/4) OF SECTION 26,
TOWNSHIP 15 NORTH, RANGE 18 EAST, MUSKOGEE COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA.

BACKGROUND:
The applicant, City of Muskogee, is requesting approval to close the alley located within Block 61 of
the Muskogee Original Townsite (between South 2nd & 3rd Street and Fremont & Elgin Avenue). The
City is requesting to close the alley to create a new public green space within the Depot District.  The
Subdivision Review Committee reviewed the request and recommended approval.

Notices have been sent to the abutting property owners, as required, and published in the paper twenty
(20) days prior to the Public Hearing. A Public Hearing will be held on the following days:

December 4, 2017 at 9:00 a.m.: City of Muskogee Planning & Zoning Commission
December 5, 2017 at 4:00 p.m.: City of Muskogee Public Works Committee
December 11, 2017 at 7:00 p.m.: City Council Meeting
 

RECOMMENDED STAFF ACTION:
Approve the Ordinance No. 4035-A to close the North/South alley located within Block 61, Muskogee
Original Townsite.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
4035-A 12-11-2017 Muskogee Original Townsite Alley Closure 
Notice/Site Plan 
Rendering - Depot District Green Space 



ORDINANCE NO.___4035-A

AN ORDINANCE CLOSING THE 20 FOOT ALLEY RUNNING NORTH AND 
SOUTH BETWEEN FREMONT AND ELGIN AVENUE. LOCATED BETWEEN 
LOTS 1-15 BLOCK 61, IN THE ORIGINAL TOWN SITE OF MUSKOGEE 
(MOT), LOCATED IN THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW1/4) OF SECTION 26,
TOWNSHIP 15 NORTH, RANGE 18 EAST, MUSKOGEE COUNTY, STATE OF 
OKLAHOMA; SUBJECT TO RETAINING UTILITY EASEMENT; AND
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY. (City of Muskogee, Petitioners)

WHEREAS, a petition has been filed by the property owner requesting said 20 foot alley
be closed and discontinued from public use, and;

WHEREAS, the City of Muskogee Planning & Zoning Commission in a meeting held 
December 4, 2017, did approve the petition and did recommend approval of official action by 
closing a public utility easement Right of Way as stated;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF MUSKOGEE, OKLAHOMA, 

Section 1: THAT THE 20 FOOT ALLEY RUNNING NORTH AND SOUTH 
BETWEEN FREMONT AND ELGIN AVENUE. LOCATED BETWEEN LOTS 1-15 BLOCK 
61, IN THE ORIGINAL TOWN SITE OF MUSKOGEE (MOT), LOCATED IN THE 
SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW1/4) OF SECTION 26, TOWNSHIP 15 NORTH, RANGE 18 
EAST IN THE ORIGINAL TOWN SITE OF MUSKOGEE (MOT), MUSKOGEE COUNTY, 
STATE OF OKLAHOMA; SUBJECT TO RETAINING UTILITY EASEMENT; AND 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY is hereby closed, annulled and discontinued from public 
use.

AND that this change be so ordered and declared by the City Council.

Section 2: REPEALER. All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in direct 
conflict herewith are repealed to the extent of the conflict only.

Section 3: SEVERABILITY.  Should any part, section, subsection, sentence, 
provision, clause, or phrase hereof be held invalid, void, or unconstitutional for any reason, such 
holding shall not render invalid, void, or unconstitutional any other section, subsection, sentence, 
provision, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance, and the same are deemed severable for this 
purpose.

Section 4: EFFECTIVE DATE. This ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after 
date of publication.



Ordinance No. _____________

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MUSKOGEE, OKLAHOMA THIS 11th DAY OF DECEMBER, 2017.

___________________________________
JOHN R. COBURN, MAYOR

ATTEST:

_____________________________
TAMMY L. TRACY, CITY CLERK
(SEAL)

APPROVED as to form and legality this ____ day of ___________________, 2017.

_____________________________________________
ROY D. TUCKER, CITY ATTORNEY



C:\Windows\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 7\@BCL@C42EB038\@BCL@C42EB038.doc

Public Hearing Notice

SO
U

TH
  2

nd
  S

TR
EE

T

SO
U

TH
  3

rd
  S

T
RE

ET

2

3

4

5

6

7

10

15

14

13

12

11

ELGIN   AVENUE

FREMONT

Proposal: To close the alley running North and South between Lots 1 through 15 in Block 
61, of the Original Town Site of Muskogee (MOT). The property is located 
between Fremont and Elgin Avenue, being more particularly described as:

The alley running North and South, 12’ on the North end, extending to 20’ 
wide on the south end.  The alley is located between Lots 1-15 Block 61, in 
the Original Town Site of Muskogee (MOT), located in the Southwest 
Quarter (SW1/4) of Section 26, Township 15 North, Range 18 East, 
Muskogee County, State of Oklahoma.

Applicant: City of Muskogee

This notice is provided to property owners lying adjacent to the above site to inform them of the 
following public hearings regarding the above proposal:

December 4, 2017 at 9:00 a.m.: City of Muskogee Planning & Zoning Commission
December 5, 2017 at 4:00 p.m.: City of Muskogee Public Works Committee
December 11, 2017 at 7:00 p.m.: City Council

All of the public hearings will be held in the Council Chambers, 3rd Floor of the City Municipal Building,
Muskogee, Oklahoma. The purpose of the public hearing is to discuss the above proposal.  You are 
welcome to attend the meeting and express your opinion. If you have questions about the proposal,
please contact the Planning Department at (918) 684-6232.



C:\Windows\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 7\@BCL@C42EB038\@BCL@C42EB038.doc

SO
U

TH
  2

nd
  S

TR
EE

T

SO
U

TH
  3

rd
  S

T
RE

ET

2

3

4

5

6

7

10

15

14

13

12

11

ELGIN   AVENUE

FREMONT

(City of Muskogee, Applicant)

PUBLIC NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that on December 4, 2017 at 9:00 a.m. in the Council Chambers of the 
Municipal Building, Muskogee, Oklahoma, a public hearing will be conducted by the City of Muskogee 
Planning & Zoning Commission, on December 5, 2017 at 4:00 p.m. by the Public Works Committee, 
and on December 11, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. by the City Council to consider an application to close the
alley running North and South between Lots 1 through 15 in Block 61, of the Original Town 
Site of Muskogee (MOT). The property is located between Fremont and Elgin Avenue, being more 
particularly described as follows:

The alley running North and South, 12’ on the North end, extending to 20’ wide on the south 
end.  The alley is located between Lots 1-15 Block 61, in the Original Town Site of Muskogee 
(MOT), located in the Southwest Quarter (SW1/4) of Section 26, Township 15 North, Range 18
East, Muskogee County, State of Oklahoma.

And for taking any other actions as authorized by law, of which all interested persons will take notice.

Mark Luttrull, Chairman
City of Muskogee Planning & Zoning Commission





   
Regular City Council 9.           
Meeting Date: 12/11/2017  
Submitted For: Mike Miller, City Manager  Initiator: Jean Kingston, City

Treasurer
Department: Finance
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval authorizing the transfer of funds in the amount of $834,130 to the Muskogee
Redevelopment Authority, directing said funds be utilized for the purpose of retiring outstanding debt in
favor of the Muskogee Medical Center Authority, as evidenced by the note and loan agreement of May
6, 2015, or take other necessary action. (Mike Miller)

BACKGROUND:
On May 6, 2015 the Muskogee Redevelopment Authority borrowed $800,000 from the Muskogee
Medical Center Authority. The principal proceeds were to be used solely for the purpose of funding
loans to Oklahoma Muskogee Hall of Fame and Museum, Inc. for a Muskogee Music Festival sponsored
and conducted by the Oklahoma Music Hall of Fame and Museum, Inc.  The note is secured by a first
priority security interest of all proceeds from fees and net earnings from the Muskogee Music Festival.
Note is due and payable on July 1, 2018.  On November 14, 2017 the City of Muskogee received a
disbursement of funds from the Muskogee Regional Medical Center of $1,063,424. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approval of the transfer to Muskogee Redevelopment Authority.

Fiscal Impact

FUNDING SOURCE:
Funding for this transfer is from the $1,063,424 received from the Muskogee Regional Medical Center
Authority on November 14, 2017.

Attachments
PROMOSSORY NOTE 









   
Regular City Council 10.           
Meeting Date: 12/11/2017  
Submitted For: Tammy Tracy, City Clerk  Initiator: Tammy Tracy, City

Clerk
Department: City Clerk
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of the appointment of Dr. Michael Lynn Soper to the Airport Board, to serve a four
(4) year term beginning January 1, 2018, and ending December 30, 2022, succeeding Gary Hall, or take
other necessary action. (Councilor Wayne Johnson)
 

BACKGROUND:
The is appointment is to replace the expired term of Gary Hall on the Airport Board.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve appointment.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Dr. Michael Lynn Soper 









   
Regular City Council 11. A.           
Meeting Date: 12/11/2017  
Submitted For: Kelly Plunkett, Personnel 
Initiator: Kelly Plunkett, Director of Human Resources 
Department: Personnel
Staff Information Source: Kelly Plunkett 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Pursuant to Section 307B.2, Title 25, Oklahoma Statutes, consider convening in Executive Session to
discuss negotiations with the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, Local
#2465, and if necessary, take appropriate action in open session. (Kelly Plunkett)

BACKGROUND:
The City’s negotiating team desires to discuss with the Mayor and City Council the ongoing
negotiations with the AFSCME, Local #2465. The City Council should determine that disclosure of
ongoing negotiations between the City and the AFSCME will seriously impair the ability of the City to
continue negotiations. Therefore, the Council should convene in executive session to discuss this matter.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Pursuant to Section 307B.2, Title 25, Oklahoma Statutes, convene in executive session to discuss
negotiations with the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, Local #2465, and
if necessary, take appropriate action in open session.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
Regular City Council 11. B.           
Meeting Date: 12/11/2017  
Submitted For: Kelly Plunkett, Personnel 
Initiator: Kelly Plunkett, Director of Human Resources 
Department: Personnel
Staff Information Source: Kelly Plunkett 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Pursuant to Section 307B.2, Title 25, Oklahoma Statutes, consider convening in Executive Session to
discuss negotiations with the International Association of Fire Fighters, Local # 57, and if necessary,
take appropriate action in open session. (Kelly Plunkett)

BACKGROUND:
The City’s negotiating team desires to discuss with the Mayor and City Council the ongoing
negotiations with the IAFF, Local No. 57. The City Council should determine that disclosure of ongoing
negotiations between the City and the IAFF will seriously impair the ability of the City to continue
negotiations. Therefore, the Council should convene in executive session to discuss this matter.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Pursuant to Section 307B.2, Title 25, Oklahoma Statutes, convene in executive session to discuss
negotiations with the International Association of Fire Fighters, Local No. 57, and if necessary, take
appropriate action in open session.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
Regular City Council 11. C.           
Meeting Date: 12/11/2017  
Initiator: Gary Garvin, Planning Director
Department: Planning
Staff Information Source: Mike Miller, City Manager, Gary D. Garvin, Director of Planning &

Economic Development 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Pursuant to Section 307 C.10, Title 25, Oklahoma Statutes, consider convening in Executive Session for
the purpose of conferring on matters pertaining to economic development projects within the downtown
corridor, and if necessary, take appropriate action in open session.  (Mike Miller)

BACKGROUND:
The City of Muskogee Planning Department received a grant from the City of Muskogee Foundation
for $1 million over the next three years to be spent on downtown revitalization.  Planning and Economic
Development Director Gary D. Garvin will be administering the grant.  Consultant Ron Drake is
working with investors, developers, and downtown business owners, helping them prepare the projects
that will be participating in the grant.  This executive session is an opportunity for Ron Drake to present
the progress in our downtown economic development efforts.
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Receive report and take any necessary action.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
Regular City Council 11. D.           
Meeting Date: 12/11/2017  
Initiator: Gary Garvin, Planning Director
Department: Planning
Staff Information Source: Mike Miller, City Manager & Gary D. Garvin, Director of Planning &

Economic Development 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Pursuant to Section 307 C.10, Title 25, Oklahoma Statues, consider convening in Executive Session for
the purpose of conferring on matters pertaining to economic development within the Urban Renewal
Area, and if necessary, take appropriate action in open session. (Mike Miller)
 

BACKGROUND:
The City Manager and staff wish to discuss with the City Council matters pertaining to economic
development within the Urban Renewal Area, where such matters, if publicly disclosed, would interfere
with the development of those products or services in Muskogee.
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Convene in Executive Session for purposes of conferring on matters pertaining to economic
development, and take action in open session.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
No file(s) attached.


	Agenda
	___6971
	    11-27-2017 ccmin
	_ 1.  _C.01.__6964
	    Claims 11_16_2017 to 11_29_2017
	_ 2.  _C.02._Engineering Services Agreement
	    Civitan Engineering Agreement
	    Civitan Scope of Services
	    Civitan Study
	_ 3.  _C.03._Rehrig Pacific
	    Bid Rehrig
	_ 4.  _C.04._Consider approval of awarding bid to Cook's Consulting
	    Bid Tabs
	    HUB Recommendation
	_ 5.  _C.05._Donations Animal Shelter
	    Oct Donations
	_ 6.  _C.06._Airport Board Appointment 
	_ 7.  _C.07._Healthy Food retail taskforce
	    Muskogee HFRTF Report
	_ 8.  _C.08._Alley Closure - COM
	    4035-A 12-11-2017 Muskogee Original Townsite Alley Closure
	    Notice_Site Plan
	    Rendering - Depot District Green Space
	Regular_ 9.  _C.09._Transfer of funds to Muskogee Redevelopment Authority
	    PROMOSSORY NOTE
	Regular_ 10.  _C.10._Airport Board Appointment - Dr. Michael Lynn Soper
	    Dr. Michael Lynn Soper
	Executive Session_ 11. A. _C.11.A._AFSCME
	Executive Session_ 11. B. _C.11.B._IAFF
	Executive Session_ 11. C. _C.11.C._Economic Development - Downtown
	Executive Session_ 11. D. _C.11.D._Urban Renewal Area

